
MONTECITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Montecito Fire Protection District Headquarters 
595 San Ysidro Road 

Santa Barbara, CA 93108 

November 25, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. 

Agenda items may be taken out of the order shown. 

1. Public comment:  Any person may address the Board at this time on any non-agenda matter
that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Montecito Fire Protection District. (30
minutes total time allotted for this discussion.)

2. Recognition for 12 years of service: Director John Abraham Powell.

3. Consider approval of Resolution 2024-08, fixing the employer contribution under the Public
Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act at an equal amount for employees and annuitants.
(Strategic Plan Goal 8)

a. Staff report presented by Finance and Administrative Manager Nahas.

4. That the Board of Directors authorize the Fire Chief to enter into a Trade Services Agreement
with Cuyama Lamb, for a maximum annual cost of $100,000. (Strategic Plan Goal 2)

a. Staff report presented by Chief Briner.

5. Review Emergency Communications Study Proposal Requested by Director Dougherty
(Strategic Plan Goal 1)

a. Report presented by Chief Neels and Director Dougherty.

6. Approval of Minutes of the October 28, 2024 Regular Meeting.

7. Fire Chief’s report.

8. Board of Director’s report.

9. Suggestions from Directors for items other than regular agenda items to be included for the
December 23, 2024 Regular Board meeting.

Adjournment 

This agenda posted pursuant to the provisions of the Government Code commencing at Section 
54950. The date of the posting is November 21, 2024.  

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 1



Montecito Fire Protection District   
Agenda for Regular Meeting, November 25, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

Note: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office at 
969-7762. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements. 

 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the Montecito Fire Protection District’s office located at 595 San Ysidro Road during normal business hours. 

 

       
David Neels, Fire Chief 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 2



Agenda 

Item #3 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 3



 
 
 
 

 STAFF REPORT 

To:  Board of Directors 
From:  David Neels, Fire Chief    
Prepared by:  Araceli Nahas, Finance and Administrative Manager   
Date:   November 25, 2024 
Topic:   CalPERS Health Insurance Resolution 
 

Summary 

CalPERS requires a Board-approved resolution to make changes to the employer health insurance 
contribution amount. 
 
Discussion 

The District’s contribution amount towards health insurance premiums for employees and retirees is 
scheduled to increase on January 1, 2025.  
 
The attached resolution lists the scheduled contribution amounts for all Medical Groups on file with 
CalPERS. Currently, all employees and retirees fall within Medical Group 000 - Employees & Annuitants. 
 
Conclusion 

 Staff recommends that the Board approve Resolution 2024-08 as presented. 
 
Attachments 

1. Resolution 2024-08 
 
Strategic Plan Reference 

Strategic Plan Goal #8, Ensure Financial Accountability & Transparency 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 4



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 
FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION  

UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT 
AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS 

 
WHEREAS, (1) Montecito Fire Protection District is a contracting agency under Government  

Code Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital 
Care Act (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, (2) Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject  

to Act shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, (3) Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution  

shall be an equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be 
less than the amount prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; now, therefore 
be it 
 

RESOLVED, (a) That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the  
amount necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the 
enrollment of family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of:  
 

Medical Group Monthly Employer Health Contribution 
Self Self+1 Self+ Family 

000 Employees and Annuitants $3,075.00 
001 Board of Directors $3,075.00 
002 Regular Hourly Employees $2,306.25 
003 Part Time Hourly Employees $1,537.50 

 
plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it 
further 
 

RESOLVED, (b) Montecito Fire Protection District has fully complied with any and all applicable  
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth 
above; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, (c) That the participation of the employees and annuitants of  
Montecito Fire Protection District shall be subject to determination of its status 
as an “agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” 
that is eligible to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of 
Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final 
Regulations pursuant to such Section.  If it is determined that Montecito Fire 
Protection District would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of the state 
or political subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, CalPERS may be 
obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health coverage of all 
participants of the employer; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, (d) That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and  

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 5



direct, Fire Chief to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to 
perform on behalf of Montecito Fire Protection District all functions required of 
it under the Act; and be it further 

RESOLVED, (e) That coverage under the Act be effective on January 1, 2025.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors at Santa Barbara, this 
25th day of November, 2024. 

Signed:  _________________________________ 
President of the Board of Directors 

Attest:   _________________________________ 
Secretary of the Board of Directors 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 6



Agenda 

Item #4 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 7



STAFF REPORT 

To: Montecito Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
From: David Neels, Fire Chief 
Prepared By: Aaron Briner, Fire Marshal 
Date: November 25, 2024 
Topic: Special Services Contract – Cuyama Lamb  

Summary 

The Montecito Fire Protection District (MFPD) wishes to enhance wildfire preparedness by continuing to 
implement prescribed herbivory (grazing) as part of the Montecito Wildfire Vegetation Management 
Program. Grazing has proven to be an ecologically sustainable management tool to reduce wildfire 
intensity in strategic locations. MFPD would like to utilize a special services contract to hire Cuyama 
Lamb to graze an estimated 70 acres in Montecito in 2025, with the option to extend the contract for 3-
additional years.  

Discussion 

Grazing limits the intensity of wildfires by reducing fuel loads in strategic locations. In 2019, MFPD 
identified approximately 900 acres of potential grazing with sheep and goats that could be implemented 
over the course of 10 years. These projects were part of the Montecito Vegetation Management 
Program analyzed by the environmental consultant Dudek.  

MFPD has most recently utilized grazing in 2020, 2023, and 2024. Cuyama Lamb is a local grazing 
contractor that has implemented all but one of the proposed five projects. In 2020, they were hired 
directly by MFPD and in 2023 and 2024 they were hired by the Santa Barbara County Fire Safe Council as 
part of the South Coast Prescribed Herbivory Program grant, which included the identified Montecito 
projects.  We anticipate this grant funding source continuing to be available in future years.    

Grazing within the community of Montecito brings unique challenges, most notable are the narrow 
roadways accessing the projects. The owners of Cuyama Lamb have knowledge of these challenges and 
have adequate equipment to navigate Montecito’s road system. Their staff have always done a great job 
implementing the projects and District residents have been complimentary on their professionalism.  

The estimated cost of grazing is $1000 - $1200 an acre for a maximum cost of $100,000 each year. The 
final cost will be calculated after each project has been completed and the perimeter of actual treated 
acres is mapped. Since the identified projects are planned to be implemented annually and there is 
potential to include additional projects, the contract includes language to allow for three (3) one-year 
renewal options and the ability to adjust the acres treated each year. The current approved budget has 
funds identified to complete these projects this fiscal year.  

Conclusion 

Staff recommends the Board approve and authorize the Fire Chief to execute the Trade Services 
Agreement with Cuyama Lamb for grazing.  The agreement includes a maximum annual cost of $100,000, 
with three (3) one-year renewal options at the Department’s sole discretion.  

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 8



Attachments 

1. Annual Grazing Zones Overview Map

Strategic Plan Reference 

Strategic Plan Goal #2, Enhance risk mitigation efforts 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 9



Tea Gardens
26.55 Acres

1088 East Mountain Dr
13.27 Acres

Casa Del Herrero
5.11 Acres

Casa Dorinda
16.70 Acres

Ennisbrook
11.00 Acres

www.zworldgis.com 805.448.1726! 0 1,000 2,000

Feet

±
MONTECITO FIRE DISTRICT

Annual Grazing Zones 
Overview Map
20241001
Compiled by ZWORLD GIS.

Creeks & Rivers

Streets

MFD Boundary
1088 East Mountain Dr.

Casa Del Herrero

Casa Dorinda

Ennisbrook

Tea Gardens

Grazing Zones

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 10



E Mountain Dr

Cold Springs Rd

Up
p

er
H

y
d

e

26.55 Acres

www.zworldgis.com 805.448.1726! 0 80 160

Feet

±
MONTECITO FIRE DISTRICT

Annual Grazing Zones        
Tea Gardens Grazing Zone 
20241001
Compiled by ZWORLD GIS.

Creeks & Rivers

Streets

1088 East Mountain Dr.

Casa Del Herrero

Casa Dorinda

Ennisbrook

Tea Gardens

Tea Gardens Grazing Zone
November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 11



E Mountain Dr

13.27 Acres

www.zworldgis.com 805.448.1726! 0 70 140

Feet

±
MONTECITO FIRE DISTRICT

Annual Grazing Zones 
1088 E Mountain Dr Grazing Zone 
20241001
Compiled by ZWORLD GIS.

Creeks & Rivers

Streets

1088 East Mountain Dr.

Casa Del Herrero

Casa Dorinda

Ennisbrook

Tea Gardens

1088 E Mountain Dr Grazing Zone
November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 12



E Pepper Ln

H
os

mer Ln

C
o

ta
L

n

P
im

ie
n

to
L

n

5.11 Acres

www.zworldgis.com 805.448.1726! 0 40 80

Feet

±
MONTECITO FIRE DISTRICT

Annual Grazing Zones        
Casa Del Herrero Grazing Zone 
20241001
Compiled by ZWORLD GIS.

Creeks & Rivers

Streets

1088 East Mountain Dr.

Casa Del Herrero

Casa Dorinda

Ennisbrook

Tea Gardens

Casa Del Herrero Grazing Zone
November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 13



Wyant Rd

Hot Springs R
d

B
o

n
n

ie
L

n

O
live

M
ill R

d

16.70 Acres

www.zworldgis.com 805.448.1726! 0 60 120

Feet

±
MONTECITO FIRE DISTRICT

Annual Grazing Zones      
Casa Dorinda Grazing Zone 
20241001
Compiled by ZWORLD GIS.

Creeks & Rivers

Streets

1088 East Mountain Dr.

Casa Del Herrero

Casa Dorinda

Ennisbrook

Tea Gardens

Casa Dorinda Grazing Zone
November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 14



M

onarc
h Ln

M
eadowbrook

D
r

11.00 Acres

www.zworldgis.com 805.448.1726! 0 50 100

Feet

±
MONTECITO FIRE DISTRICT

Annual Grazing Zones  
Ennisbrook Grazing Zone 
20241001
Compiled by ZWORLD GIS.

Creeks & Rivers

Streets

1088 East Mountain Dr.

Casa Del Herrero

Casa Dorinda

Ennisbrook

Tea Gardens

Ennisbrook Grazing Zone
November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 15



Agenda 

Item #5 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 16



 Montecito Community 
 Emergency Communications 
 Study Proposal 
 November 25, 2024 
 ─ 
 Stephen Dougherty 
 Director 
 Montecito Fire Protection District 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 17



 Overview 

 Montecito’s Communication Challenges During  Emergencies 

 Given its geographic location, Montecito is an area particularly susceptible to natural disasters 
 such as wildland fires and debris flows. Situated between mountains and the ocean, the 
 region has extremely limited egress routes, which makes timely evacuation challenging during 
 emergencies. 

 Traditional communication methods, such as cell phones, the internet and even landline 
 telephones have proven unreliable during emergencies. This hinders residents' ability to call 
 911 or access critical situational information. (Public Safety Power Shutoffs may further 
 exacerbate communication disruptions even prior to the onset of an emergency.) 

 The tragic loss of 25 lives in the Oakland/Berkeley Fire of 1991 and 102 lives in the Lahaina fire 
 of 2023, with many perishing while unsuccessfully attempting to evacuate, underscores the 
 importance of effective communication during emergencies. The restricted egress routes and 
 unreliable public communication in Montecito resemble conditions similar to those in 
 previous disasters. This highlights the critical need for more reliable public information 
 systems during emergencies. 

 While the Santa Barbara County Office of Emergency Management plays a vital role, its small 
 staff,  tight resources and limited local knowledge may be inadequate to address the issue. 

 Proposal 

 To enhance resident safety during emergencies,  Montecito  Fire should investigate and 
 propose strategies for establishing reliable emergency communications  which enable 
 timely public access to critical information and emergency services. 

 The Montecito Fire staff does not currently have the resources nor expertise to undertake all 
 the necessary research and make recommendations.  However, Montecito Fire Protection 
 District does have the financial resources to hire experts in the field to conduct the required 
 research and make practical and actionable recommendations. 

 Goals 
 1.  Evaluate the current state of real time communications during an emergency 

 especially when grid power may be limited or unavailable. 

 2.  Make practical recommendations on multiple ways in which communications 
 during emergencies can be improved. 

 3.  Create a plan for how these recommendations can be implemented and monitor 
 progress on the implementation of the recommendations. 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 18



 Next Steps 

 I.  Direct staff begin search for consultants 
 The Montecito Fire Protection District Board of Directors should direct the staff to 
 initiate a search for appropriate consultants and anticipate there will be an associated 
 expense with hiring consultants 

 II.  Identify the consultants 
 Montecito Fire staff should identify  the appropriate consultants to conduct the study. 

 III.  Hire the consultants 
 The Montecito Fire Protection District Board of Directors should approve the necessary 
 funding to conduct the required research. 

 IV.  Present the findings 
 Present the findings and recommendations to the Montecito Fire Protection District 
 Board and the community. 

 V.  Develop a plan and set timelines for implementing the recommendations. 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 19



 Some examples of what the study might find or recommend: 

 a.  Infrastructure  ; The current cell phone, landline and internet infrastructure is 
 inadequate. Perhaps there are ways to incentivize the service providers to make 
 their systems more resilient during emergencies with battery backup systems, 
 redundant systems, undergrounding of utilities, or whatever is required for 
 reliable service. 

 There are also things that don’t require major infrastructure fixes: 

 b.  Individual residences;  Individuals may be able to improve their access to 
 emergency communications by purchasing simple reliable radio receivers, 
 installing things like backup  power or satellite internet service, using cell 
 phones with satellite service …. 

 c.  Montecito Fire Department  ; Having a reliable radio broadcast system to provide 
 real time information across the district before and during emergencies. 
 (Significant progress in this area has been made in the last 12 months). 

 d.  Montecito Fire Department:  Potentially adding an emergency communications 
 specialist position, similar to what we have with dedicated wildland fire 
 specialists. The role would be to do things like: 

 Monitor community emergency communications readiness, work with 
 local service providers to improve communication infrastructure. 

 Keep abreast of new emergency communication technology and advise 
 residents of methods of emergency communications preparedness. 

 Monitor state and federal initiatives focussed on improved 
 communication infrastructure and making sure local service providers are 
 following the mandates 

 Monitor emergency communications initiatives in other communities to 
 see what may apply to Montecito. 

 Ideally we can make Montecito an example of how our community is an example to 
 other communities of how public emergency communication is done well. 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 20



 

Agenda 

Item #6 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 21



MONTECITO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

Minutes for the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 
Held at Montecito Fire Protection District, 595 San Ysidro Road, Santa Barbara, CA 93108 on 
October 28, 2024 at 2:00 p.m.  
 
Director Lee called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m. 
 
Present: Director Lee, Director Easton, Director Dougherty, Director Powell. Chief Neels and 
District Counsel Mark Manion were also present.   
Absent: Director van Duinwyk 
 
1. Public comment: Any person may address the Board at this time on any non-agenda 

matter that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Montecito Fire Protection 
District. (30 minutes total time allotted for this discussion.)  
 
There were no public comments to report at this meeting.  
 

2. Receive presentation from PARS/PFM Asset Management representatives, Angela Tang 
and Dennis Mullins, regarding the District’s post-retirement benefits trust investments 
plans. (Strategic Plan Goal 8)  

 
a. Staff report presented by Accountant Nahas.  

 
Accountant Nahas provided an overview of the District’s trust accounts for OPEB and 
Pension and introduced the presenters, Angela Tang from PARS and Dennis Mullins 
of PFM Asset Management. Ms. Tang reviewed the fund activity and balances, and 
Mr. Mullins reviewed the investment performance for the past year. Mr. Mullins 
confirmed that all funds are held at US Bank and he advised maintaining the current 
investment strategy which includes 30% equity and 70% fixed income. 
 

3. Report from the Finance Committee. (Strategic Plan Goal 8)  
 

a. Consider recommendation for approval of July, August and September 2024 
financial statements.  
 
Accountant Nahas presented the July, August, and September 2024 financial 
statements which showed no unusual revenue or expense activity, with primary 
costs being operational. Director Lee informed the Board that the Finance 
Committee also reviewed the financials and asked clarifying questions of Accountant 
Nahas. 
 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 22



Motion to approve the financial statements for July, August and September 2024 
made by Director Lee, seconded by Director Easton, and unanimously passed.  

 
b. Review PARS Post-Employment Benefits Trust statement for July and August 2024.  

 
Accountant Nahas provided a staff report regarding PARS Post-Employment Benefits 
Trust statement for July and August 2024. 

 
4. Review Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures for the 

CalOES California Fire Assistance Agreement Salary Surveys and Reimbursement Claims. 
(Strategic Plan Goal 8)  
 

a. Staff report presented by Accountant Nahas.  
 
Accountant Nahas reported that the District was selected for a CalOES audit under 
the California Fire Assistance Agreement (CFAA) for 2020. Accountant Nahas 
reported that there were minor findings related to pay increases, and no further 
action is required. The Board accepted and filed the Independent Accountant’s 
Report. 
 

5. That the Board of Directors authorize the Fire Chief to enter into a Professional Services 
Agreement with Underwood Management Resources, Inc. in the amount of $75,000. 
(Strategic Plan Goal 5)  
 

a. Staff report presented by Fire Chief Neels.  
 
Chief Neels provided a staff report regarding an agreement for professional services 
with Underwood Management Resources, Inc. for assistance with various 
improvement projects. 

 
Motion to authorize the Fire Chief to enter into a Professional Services Agreement 
with Underwood Management Resources, Inc, in an amount not to exceed 
$75,000.00 made by Director Powell, seconded by Director Easton. The motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
6. That the Board of Directors approve and authorize the President to execute Side Letter 

Agreement amending Sections 1, 12.1 and 30 of the Memorandum of Understanding 
between the Members of Staff and the Montecito Fire Protection District adding the 
Finance and Administrative Manager position and removing the Accountant Position. 
(Strategic Plan Goal 6) 

 
a. Staff report presented by Fire Chief Neels.  

 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 23



Chief Neels provided a staff report regarding a change of title and compensation for 
the Accountant position. Chief Neels recommended the change of title to Finance 
and Administrative Manager with corresponding adjustments to the compensation. 

Motion to approve and authorize the President to execute Side Letter Agreement 
amending Sections 1, 12.1 and 30 of the Memorandum of Understanding between 
the Members of Staff and the Montecito Fire Protection District adding the Finance 
and Administrative Manager position and removing the Accountant Position made 
by Director Dougherty, seconded by Director Easton and motion carried. Director 
Powell voted nay.  

7. Approval of Minutes of the September 23, 2024 Regular Meeting.

Motion to approve the minutes of the September 23, 2024 Regular Meeting made by
Director Powell, seconded by Director Easton, and unanimously passed.

8. Fire Chief’s report.

Fire Chief Neels presented the Quarterly Operations Report, highlighting response data,
training, major incidents, Mutual Aid, personnel updates, and community engagement.
Public Information Officer Atchison reported on improvements to the District’s AM 1610
radio station. Chief Neels noted that Wildland Fire Specialists removed 50 tons of vegetation
in the past month and shared that the District hosted a Winter Weather Outlook meeting
with the National Weather Service and local partners. He also announced Coral Godlis as the
new Administrative Assistant for the Montecito Fire Department, starting November 1,
2024.

9. Board of Director’s report.

There were no items to report at this meeting.
10. Suggestions from Directors for items other than regular agenda items to be included for

the November 25, 2024 Regular Board meeting.

Director Dougherty presented a proposal to study Montecito Community Emergency
Communications. Item will be added to the November Agenda.

Regular meeting closed at 4:23 p.m.

11. CLOSED SESSION: Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release (Government Code
section 54957)

Director Lee called Closed Session to order at 4:30 p.m.

The Board reported out of closed session at 5:17 p.m. with no reportable action.

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 24



Meeting Adjourned at 5:17 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________      ____________________ 
President Peter van Duinwyk     Secretary Sylvia Easton 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 25



 

Agenda 

Item #7 

November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 26



November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 27



November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 28



November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 29



November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 30



November 25, 2024 - Regular Page 31


	Agenda 11-25-24 Regular Board Meeting
	Agenda #3
	Staff Report CalPERS Health Insurance Resolution
	Resolution 2024-08 CalPERS Health Contribution

	Agenda #4
	Staff Report Grazing Services
	Annual_Grazing_Map_2024_11x17 - v2
	2024_Bid_For_Grazing_Maps_11x17_Detailed
	2024_Bid_For_Grazing_Maps_11x17_Overview

	Agenda #5
	Montecito Community Emergency Communications Study Proposal

	Agenda #6
	Minutes 2024 10-28- RM

	Agenda #7
	Thank You Letter  Sheriff Arnoldi
	Thank You Letter SB Fire Chief Mailes
	Thank You Letter Fire Chiefs Association
	Thank You Letter Gupta




